2012

# Edwin B. Parry and Express Recovery Services v. Luonda M. Davis : Unknown

Utah Supreme Court

## JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Jurisdiction is set with in the Court of Appeals as the Third District Court of West Jordan, UT Trial Court has turned this over to the Court of Appeals upon me filing for an appeal, due to that I never received the Notice of Judgment and it entered default Judgment on January 10 2012, I filed an order to dismiss judgment on January 31 2012, Order to Dismiss Judgment denied April 3 2012 on April 4 2012 I entered a Notice of Appeal. On May 02 2012 Letter that Court of Appeals was assigned case.

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES

**1.** Did the District Court award Judgment upon receipt of Notice of Service on the grounds that someone at Residence accepted papers served to someone other than the Appellant (that did not reside at the residence)?

**2.** Did the District Courts review the Bill in question to verify that this is a bill that is owed by the Appellant and that Appellant has acknowledged the bill by signing for services or otherwise? Is this in Fact a Family Expense , or is it a **Medical Expense** that is NOT that of Minor Child **Medical expenses**? Is the State of Utah a state that recognizes the **Doctrine of Necessities** or is the State of Utah a **Community Property State** that would allow for someone that has not signed for services rendered to be billed for the bill?

## STATEMENT OF CASE

In February 2010 late husband was treated at University of Utah Hospital for sickness, in March of 2011 husband passed away from sickness. While late

husband was at the University of Utah Hospital he received services that he signed for and accepted acknowledgment that he was the person that would pay the bills that generated for services rendered. The collection agency has added this bill on my credit and they are trying to collect money from me the spouse of husband that is deceased. In review of all the laws and codes that are in place on this, I am not liable for the medical bills as described below, I never signed anything stating that I would pay for services rendered.

In the Utah Codes Family Expenses and Medical Expenses are separate items, the **Medical Expenses Utah Code 78B-12-212** specifies that I would be responsible for medical expenses of my minor children but not that of my husband and the Family Expense specifies the expenses of the family and the education of the children are chargeable upon the property of both husband and wife.

As this is not a Community Property State or a state that recognizes the Doctrine of Necessities, I should not be liable for the hospital bills of deceased husband.

**STATEMENT OF THE FACTS**

In December 2011, The Appellant Express Recovery Services served papers of judgment to someone at the residents that is listed, the person receiving the papers is at least 18 years of age and was at the residence of the Appellant (**did not live at the Residence**). In January 2011, a Judgment was granted to the Appellant in default of Appellant not showing up in court. **Utah Rule 4 (d) (1) (A)**

In February 2010, The Appellants' late Husband had received services by the University Of Utah Hospitals (services not rendered to Appellant) and Appellant did not sign any papers recognizing services rendered, whereas the District Courts issued a judgment in default of Appellant not showing up in court. Utah is NOT a State that recognizes Doctrine of Necessities and Utah is NOT a Community Property State.

### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT**

I did not sign for services rendered and as this a individual need not a family necessity, in a none community property state, and a state that does not recognize the doctrine of necessities, the bill should be removed from my credit and I should not be harassed by collection agency to pay the bill.

### **ARGUMENT**

#### **1. Judgment upon receipt of Notice of Service on the grounds that someone at Residence accepted papers served to someone other than the Appellant?**

##### **1. (A) Appellant Never Received the Notice of Judgment**

I the Appellant was not aware that there was a Judgment being entered against me as I did not received the Documents served on me to someone that was at the place of residence, that was 18 years of age or older, but did not reside at the place of residence.

The way I found out about the Judgment was looking at my credit score and later receiving something in the mail from Express Recovery Services.

**1.(B)** Upon any individual other than one covered by subparagraphs (B), (C) or (D) below, by delivering a copy of the summons and the complaint to the individual personally, or **by leaving a copy at the individual's dwelling house or usual place of abode with some person of suitable age and discretion there residing**, or by delivering a copy of the summons and the complaint to an agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of process;

**2. (A) Appellant never signed for services rendered, the state of Utah does NOT recognize the Doctrine of Necessities and is NOT a Community Property State.**

I the appellant never signed for services rendered, I was not the patient and the hospital never obtained my signature on anything stating that I would pay for the medical services rendered to late husband Marvin C. Davis. The services rendered where for comfort of individual not necessary for comfort of the family.

**2. (B) 3. In accordance with Utah Code 30-2-9 Family Expenses -Joint and Several Liability.**

**2. 3. (1)** The expenses of the family and the education of the children are chargeable upon the property of both husband and wife or of either of them, and in relation thereto they may be sued jointly or separately.

**2. 3. (2)** In an action by a creditor against either husband or wife for the payment of a family expense, the creditor or debtor as the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable collection costs, interest, and attorney fees as provided in a contract between the creditor and debtor.

**2. (C) Utah Code 30-2-5. Separate debts**

(1) Neither spouse is personally liable for the separate debts, obligations, or liabilities of the other:

- (a) contracted or incurred before marriage;
- (b) contracted or incurred during marriage, except family expenses as provided in Section 30-2-9;
- (c) contracted or incurred after divorce or an order for separate maintenance under this title, except the spouse is personally liable for that portion of the expenses incurred on behalf of a minor child for reasonable and necessary medical and dental expenses, and other similar necessities as provided in a court order.

**2. (D) Existence of a "Family Expense."**

A closely related, but nevertheless separate, test that expenses must meet that goods or services purchased must be expenses for the "family," as opposed to those "individual, personal, or business expenses of a member of the family which do not contribute to family convenience, enjoyment or comfort."

**2. (E) Existence of "Family Necessities."**

In addition to other elements of a family expenses statute, a creditor must plead and prove that the expenses sought to be collected are, in fact "family necessities."

**2. (F) Utah is NOT a Community Property State:**

**Community Property States include:** Alaska, Arizona, California, Idaho, Louisiana, Nevada, New Mexico, Texas, Washington, and Wisconsin.

**2. (G) Utah is a State that does NOT recognize The Doctrine of Necessities:**

This doctrine was established under Common Law. Under the **Doctrine of Necessities**, one spouse is liable for “necessary” expenses incurred by the other spouse during a marriage. This holds true but particularly for medical bills, which are almost always deemed “**necessary.**”

There are 15 states which do “NOT” have the **Doctrine of Necessities** in place, which include UT states that do “NOT” have the **Doctrine of Necessities** is Alaska, Alabama, Arkansas, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Maryland, Michigan, Mississippi, Montana, New York, Vermont and **Utah**. In these states spouse is responsible for their own medical debt and cannot legally be compelled to paid medical debt for debt of the other spouse.

**Conclusion**

For these reasons, the decision of the District Court should be reversed and the Judgment removed from my Credit Report.

This does not fall under the Family Expense Code in Utah State Codes.

I did not sign documents before, during, or after services were rendered acknowledging that I would pay for services performed on deceased husband.

This is not a Community Property State or a State that recognizes The Doctrine of Necessities

Therefor I am not liable for the medical bills of my late husband.