2012

Express Recovery Services, Inc. v. Luonda Davis : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION

The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to *Utah Code Ann.* Section 78-2a-3(2)(4) as this is an appeal of a final order of the Third Judicial District Court.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES RAISED ON APPEAL

APPELLANT ISSUE NO. 1: Did the District Court err in denying Appellant's Motion to Set Aside Judgment by finding Appellant had failed to set forth a basis of "excusable neglect" as required by Rule 60(b) *Utah Rules of Civil Procedure*.

STANDARD FOR REVIEW FOR ISSUE NO. 1: This is an issue of law as the facts are undisputed. Defendant was served with a Summons and Complaint by means of a ten day Summons served upon a resident of the property where defendant resided at the time of service. The Complaint in the matter was filed with the Court timely. Defendant failed to file an Answer to the Complaint and Default Judgment was entered against defendant January 10, 2010. The Court reviews issues of law for correctness and no deference need be given the lower court. *MacKay v Hardy*, 973 P. 2d 941, 944 (Utah 1998).

APPELLANT ISSUE NO. 2: Did the District Court err in denying Appellant's Motion to Set Aside Judgment by finding Appellant had failed to set for a "meritorious defense" to the claims in the Complaint as required by Rule 60(b) *Utah Rules of Civil Procedure*.

STANDARD FOR REVIEW FOR ISSUE NO. 2: This is an issue of law as defendant disputes that medical bills resulting from medical services provided to her now deceased husband are a “family expense” as set forth in 30-2-9 *Utah Code Ann.* The Court reviews issues of law for correctness and no deference need be given the lower court. MacKay v Hardy, 973 P. 2d 941, 944 (Utah 1998).

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AND STATUTES

DETERMINATIVE OF APPEAL

Rule 60(b) *Utah Rules of Civil Procedure* governing the setting aside of Default Judgments and the criteria necessary to enter an order setting aside judgment.

Utah Code Ann. 30-2-9- Family Expenses-Joint and several liability.

The expenses of the family and the education of the children are chargeable upon the property of both husband and wife or either of them, and in relation thereto they may be sued jointly or separately.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Express Recovery Services, Inc. (hereinafter “Express”) brought action to recovery for medical expenses incurred on behalf of defendant’s husband during the course of the marriage. Defendant’s husband is now deceased and action was brought against defendant only as the spouse of the patient at the time of services. Express caused defendant to be served by service upon a person over 18 years of age at the residence of the defendant. Defendant failed to file any responsive pleading to the Complaint and Default Judgment was entered January 10, 2012. Defendant subsequently

filed a Motion to Set Aside Judgment in the matter on or about February 22, 2012 which Motion was heard April 3, 2012 before the Honorable Bruce Lubeck who found that defendant had failed to show either excusable neglect for her failure to file a timely responsive pleading or that defendant had a meritorious defense to the claims brought by Express.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. Defendant was married to the patient receiving medical services from Express' assignor at the time services were rendered to the patient.
2. The charges for the medical services remain unpaid.
3. The charges were assigned to Express for purposes of collection and Express attempted to recover the money owed.
4. To attempt to collect the money owed for the services rendered to defendant's husband Express brought suit against defendant in Third District Court.
5. Plaintiff served the Summons and Complaint upon a person of over 18 years of age at the residence of defendant.
6. No responsive pleading was filed by defendant and Default Judgment was entered in favor of Express and against defendant on January 10, 2012.
7. Defendant filed a Motion to Set Aside Judgment pursuant to Rule 60(b) *Utah Rules of Civil Procedure* February 22, 2012.
8. The Motion was heard by the Court on April 3, 2012 and the Court denied defendant's Motion finding that defendant had failed to show either excusable neglect in

her failure to file a responsive pleading and also that defendant had failed to set forth a meritorious defense to the claims of Express.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Service on the defendant was made on a person over the age of 18 years at the defendant's place of residence. *See* Page 7-Appellant's brief. Said service was sufficient to give defendant notice of the action. Defendant did not show excusable neglect in setting forth her reasons for failing to respond to the Summons and Complaint.

It is undisputed that defendant's husband received medical services during his marriage to defendant. Medical services are a family expense pursuant to 30-2-9 *Utah Code Ann.* and as the wife of the recipient of the services defendant is liable the medical expenses incurred.

ARGUMENT

I. SERVICE WAS SUFFICIENT TO GIVE DEFENDANT NOTICE OF THE ACTION AND DEFENDANT FAILED TO RESPOND TO THE COMPLAINT

Service of a summons and complaint is required to be made upon the "individual personally, or by leaving a copy at the individual's dwelling house or usual place of abode with some person of suitable age and discretion there residing." Rule 4(d)(1)(A) *Utah Rules of Civil Procedure*. Defendant contends that service on a person of suitable age at her residence is somehow insufficient. She acknowledged service was made at her residence address. The purpose of service of a Summons and Complaint is to allow the opposing party the opportunity to respond. Service upon a party other than the defendant

in a matter is acceptable under the Rule as stated in its language. Further, since the likelihood of a person appearing at the place of service in the near future, without a permanent residence elsewhere is sufficient to uphold service, *See, Reed v Reed*, 806 P.2d 1182 (Utah 1991) it is reasonable that service on a person of suitable age at the residence of a party is sufficient service. If service is proper and defendant gave no reason in court other than that she had not received it from the recipient the Court is correct in determining, after hearing the argument of defendant, that service was proper and that defendant failed to make a showing of excusable neglect sufficient for relief under Rule 60(b).

II. DEFENDANT FAILED TO SHOW A MERITORIOUS DEFENSE TO PLAINTIFF'S CLAIM

Assuming the Court does not agree that the Defendant failed to show excusable in her failure to respond to the summons and complaint in a timely manner her Motion under Rule 60(b) *Utah Rules of Civil Procedure* fails for her lack of showing a meritorious defense to the underlying action. The Utah Supreme Court has established a three prong test with regard to the granting of relief from a default judgment. "In order for a defendant to be relieved from the default judgment, he must not only show that the judgment was entered against him through excusable neglect... that his motion...was timely, and that he has a meritorious defense to the action." Department of Social Services v. Musselman, 667 P. 2d 1053 (Utah, 1983). Defendant claims that medical expenses incurred by her spouse during their marriage are not "family expenses" as

contemplated by 30-2-9 *Utah Code Ann.* In her brief defendant acknowledges that her husband received services from Express' assignor and the charges for said services are unpaid. She contends that family expenses and medical expenses are separate items and that the medical bills for her late husband do not fall under the statute. We disagree. Defendant seeks to narrow the scope of what is a family expense by limiting what qualifies. She further argues that since Utah does not have a statute creating spousal liability for "necessaries" that she is not liable. The Court has regularly ruled that, as the statute states, "expenses of the family... are chargeable upon the property of both husband and wife." This has included clothing and even legal fees incurred as they related to the custody of the minor children of spouses that later reconciled after having filed a divorce action. *See, Berow, v. Shields*, 48 Utah 270, 159 P. 538 (1916). It would appear that while not all family expenses are necessaries that necessaries are family expenses. The Court went on to state "all that is required by the statute is that the things purchased are legitimate or proper family expenses." *Id.* At 539. The Court also held that whether the expenses are or are not a necessity is immaterial. *Id.* At 539. To rule otherwise would be to find that the preservation of life, medical care for a family member, or any other action taken on behalf of a spouse or child are not recoverable except by the person receiving the services providing the care. Defendant acknowledges that her husband received medical care from Express' assignor. She acknowledges that they were husband and wife at the time services were provided. To argue that attempts to

preserve the life, or to provide care, comfort or other related services to a family member are not a family expense is contrary to both the language and intent of the law.

CONCLUSION

The trial court did not err in its finding that defendant failed to meet her burden of proof under Rule 60(b) *Utah Rules of Civil Procedure* both by her failure to show excusable neglect as to why she failed to respond to the complaint in a timely manner and her failure to raise a meritorious defense to the underlying claim. This Court should affirm the District Court decision and allow Express to continue with its collection efforts.